
a  

Selkirks - Pend Oreille Transit Authority 
 Public Notice of Regular Board Meeting Agenda 

11:00 am, Thursday, September 21, 2023 
SPOT Office, 31656 Hwy 200, Suite 102, Ponderay, ID 

Zoom Meeting ID:  812 9356 9630  
Passcode: 970119 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 

2. Public comment period for items not on the Agenda (including questions from the press) 
 
3. Approval of Minutes 

a. Action Item:     Approve Minutes of the August 17, 2023, regular meeting. 
 

4. Financial Reports  
a. Action Item:     Accept Financial Reports for August 2023 
b. Action Item:    Approve Payment of Prepaid Bills and Outstanding Bills 

 
5. Staff Reports 

a. Ridership   Donna Griffin 
 

b. Operations   Donna Griffin 
a. Bus shelters, benches, and pads update 
b. Mountain Route  
c. Public Transportation Summit September 26-28, 2023 

 
6. Committee Reports 

a. Boundary County Service Development Committee 
b. Finance Committee 

 
7. Action and Discussion Items:   

a. Action Item: Anderson Bros. CPAs Engagement Letter for approval and signature 
b. Action Item: iiiA Benefits Documents Updated 

i. Updated JPA & Participation Agreement for approval and signature 
c. Action Item: ICRMP Updated JPA for approval and signature 
d. Action Item: SPOT Authority User Conduct Code and Paratransit Demand Application 
e. Action Item: Budget 2023-2024 
f. Action Item: Bonner County Cost Allocation tool 
g. Action Item: Financial considerations 

 
8. Comments from the Chair and Board Members 

 
9. Adjournment 

Note: Public information on agenda items is available from the SPOT office at 31656 Highway 200 Suite 102, Ponderay, ID or call (208) 
263-3774.  Any person needing special accommodation at the above noticed meeting should contact SPOT three days prior to the 

meeting at (208) 263-3774. 



1 
 

 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
SPOT 

 

 
 

SELKIRK PEND OREILLE TRANSIT 
August 17, 2023 

 
 

Gary Kunzeman CALLED THE MEETING TO ORDER AT 11:05 A.M. 

PRESENT: Clif Warren, Colleen Culwell, Donna Griffin, Ron Smith, Shannon Pittman, Zale Palmer 
Absent: Nancy Lewis, Wally Cossairt 
 
Guests: Shauna Miller, ITD 
Public Comment Period: No comments. 
 
MINUTES:  Approve minutes of the July 20, 2023 regular meeting as presented. 

Motion to approve the minutes of the July 20, 2023 regular meeting. Zale Palmer/ Ron Smith.   All in favor.  
Approved 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTS:  

Accept Financial Reports for July. 
Motion to accept the financial reports for July. Zale Palmer/ Clif Warren. All in favor. Approved 
 Year‐to‐date actual is under budget. 
 
Approve payment of prepaid bills and outstanding bills, with additional of bills from Schweitzer and Lake City 
Law.    
Motion to approve the payment of prepaid bills and outstanding bills, as amended. Zale Palmer/ Ron 
Smith. All in favor. Approved 
 

STAFF REPORTS:   
Ridership:  Donna Griffin reported that ridership for Boundary County was very low for the month of July, but early 
numbers for August show improvement. Working on various options for additional ridership. Festival at Sandpoint 
ridership for this year was 4,374 in comparison to 2,068 in the prior year. Fall Fest ridership also saw an increase from 
494 last year to 628 this year. Demand/Para Transit received 12 new applications in the last 3 weeks. Donna reported 
receiving ridership requests from Luther Park and other locations where people might have other transportation 
options.  
 
Operations:  Donna Griffin reported six of the 10 benches have been built and installed. There are two benches still 
in the storage unit, which will be cleared out and surrendered by end of August. Brandon with City of Sandpoint has 
been very helpful issuing specs for pads. Ponderay might be able to use the same specs. Ponderay is setting aside 
some space for SPOT at the Home Depot expansion. Product recalls relating to the fuel rail have been received on 
four of the five Mountain Buses. Donna is reaching out to Bryson on the recalls on the newer buses. All buses must 
be back in service by Fall Fest. Especially the newer buses to make sure they are operating properly before ski season.  
The 2024/2026 grant cycle will be open October 2, 2023 through January 2024. Looking into extending other open 
grants that will be expiring September 30, 2023: Microtransit, technology, and marketing grants. 



2 
 

 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS:   
A. Boundary County Service Development Committee:  Ron Smith reported City of Moyie Springs has agreed to 

provide match in the amount of $1,000 for this year and next year. 
 

B. Finance Committee Update: The financial reports were reviewed and approved. A presentation was made to 
City of Sandpoint on August 2, 2023. Sandpoint has requested that SPOT develop a methodology for allocating 
the match funds. No response from Bonner County commissioners after their presentation. Although the 
County stated they may be able to help in other areas, even if non‐monetary. Finance committee also discussed 
setting up an equipment replenishment cycle. Need to plan on how to fund the matches for future capital 
expenditures in addition to the regular matches. Discussed if we should use Cares Funds or 5311 funds for July‐
September 2023. Per Shauna, we can extend the Cares Funds if not used by 2025. They will also have a one‐time 
Cares grant offered in October 2023 to be used for any need. The Finance Committee recommends that we use 
Cares Funds for the remainder of this current fiscal year. 

 
ACTION & DISCUSSION ITEMS: 
A. Action Item: SPOT Authority User Information and Policy, and Paratransit Demand Application. Staff has been 

working on revamping the application and user policy. Also making the application easier to complete. Board 
discussed possible changes and corrections to application and user policy. 
Tabled. No action taken. 
 

B. Action Item: Ponderay Neighbor Day, Saturday September 9, 2023. SPOT has been asked if we want a booth 
and staff at this event, along with a bus. $50 fee. City of Ponderay would appreciate if we would participate. 
Gary Kunzeman recommended that we have a booth. 
Motion to secure a booth at the Ponderay Neighbor Days event. Zale Palmer/ Ron Smith. All in favor. 
Approved. 

 
C. Action Item: Bonner County EMS Revised SPOT Bus MOU. The attorney added additional verbiage to the 

agreement. The County is reviewing the changes. 
Tabled. No action taken. 

 
D. Action Item: Transloc agreement extension to December 2023. Transloc has agreed to extend our use of the 

old system through December 2023 at an increased cost ‐ $700 up from $609. Donna is still looking to switch 
over to Paseo. 
Motion to extend the Transloc agreement through December 31, 2023. Clif Warren/ Zale Palmer. All in favor. 
Approved. 
 

E. Action Item: Public Transportation Summit September 26‐28, 2023. This year’s event will be the precursor to 
next year’s that will be open to stakeholders and everyone interested in public transportation. This year’s 
summit will mainly be a planning session for next year’s. Cost to attend will be covered by RTAP, up to two 
members. This year’s event will be held in Boise. Next year’s to be held in Sun Valley. 
No action taken. 
 

F. Action Item: Proposed budget and financial considerations.  
Motion to publish the proposed budget for 2023/2024. Clif Warren/ Ron Smith. All in favor. Approved. 
Motion to submit July through September grant funding invoices under the Care Act grant. Clif Warren/ Zale 
Palmer. All in favor. Approved. 

 
 

COMMENTS FROM THE CHAIR AND BOARD MEMBERS: No comments. 
Meeting adjourned 12:34 p.m.  



 3:58 PM

 09/15/23

 Accrual Basis

 Selkirks‐Pend Oreille Transit Authority

 Summarized Balance Sheet

 As of August 31, 2023

ASSETS Bonner County Boundary County Total

Current Assets

Checking/Savings 261,479.38 18,426.66 279,906.04

Accounts Receivable 783.00 468.00 1,251.00

Grant Funds Receivable 142,118.00 7,711.00 149,829.00

Total Other Current Assets 30,607.62 1,866.38 32,474.00

Total Current Assets 434,988.00 28,472.04 463,460.04

Total Fixed Assets 1,427,011.11 72,360.37 1,499,371.48

TOTAL ASSETS 1,861,999.11 100,832.41 1,962,831.52

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities 20,179.43 1,393.59 21,573.02

Equity 1,841,819.68 99,438.82 1,941,258.50

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 1,861,999.11 100,832.41 1,962,831.52



 3:58 PM

 09/15/23

 Accrual Basis

 Selkirks‐Pend Oreille Transit Authority

 Summary Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

 August 2023

Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget

Total Income 70,844.83 57,373.55 5,408.83 5,059.96 6,491.34 985.54 82,745.00 63,419.05

Expenses:

Administration 12,119.44 11,760.26 477.52 609.78 195.49 1,189.70 12,792.45 13,559.74

Operations 38,312.42 53,390.03 3,572.66 4,949.18 737.47 58.33 42,622.55 58,397.54

Preventative Maintenance 16,339.78 6,518.00 174.40 465.45 5,322.04 0.00 21,836.22 6,983.45

Total Expenses 66,771.64 71,668.29 4,224.58 6,024.41 6,255.00 1,248.03 77,251.22 78,940.73

Net Ordinary Income 4,073.19 -14,294.74 1,184.25 -964.45 236.34 -262.49 5,493.78 -15,521.68

Other Income/Expense -246.84 -2,982.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -246.84 -2,982.08

Net Income 3,826.35 -17,276.82 1,184.25 -964.45 236.34 -262.49 5,246.94 -18,503.76

‐              ‐             

Bonner County Boundary County TotalMountain Route



 3:58 PM

 09/15/23

 Accrual Basis

 Selkirks‐Pend Oreille Transit Authority

 Summary Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

 October 2022‐August 2023

Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget

Total Income 719,368.21 994,525.48 67,517.01 76,006.82 542,643.74 321,789.98 1,329,528.96 1,392,322.28

Expenses:

Administration 135,136.92 140,162.80 15,588.87 7,767.62 10,133.41 22,898.30 160,859.20 170,828.72

Operations 425,135.79 546,728.85 42,614.04 62,007.35 155,273.91 174,235.75 623,023.74 782,971.95

Preventative Maintenance 100,478.00 74,417.72 4,598.25 6,269.97 38,050.57 105,740.71 143,126.82 186,428.40

Total Expenses 660,750.71 761,309.37 62,801.16 76,044.94 203,457.89 302,874.76 927,009.76 1,140,229.07

Net Ordinary Income 58,617.50 233,216.11 4,715.85 -38.12 339,185.85 18,915.22 402,519.20 252,093.21

Other Income/Expense -20,486.16 -318,420.92 -171.33 0.00 -329,382.60 0.00 -350,040.09 -318,420.92

Net Income 38,131.34 -85,204.81 4,544.52 -38.12 9,803.25 18,915.22 52,479.11 -66,327.71

‐                0.00             

Bonner County Boundary County Mountain Route Total



 4:17 PM
 08/29/23

 Selkirks-Pend Oreille Transit Authority

 Paid Bills Detail
 As of August 29, 2023

Type Date Num Open Balance

Coleman Oil

Bill 08/13/2023 CP-0016257 2,129.96

Bill 08/20/2023 CP-0018048 2,214.61

Bill 08/27/2023 CP-0019075 2,118.62

Total Coleman Oil 6,463.19

Goldenwest Mobility

Bill 08/17/2023 24483 691.06

Bill 08/17/2023 24482 400.03

Bill 08/18/2023 24489 174.40

Bill 08/21/2023 24496 238.71

Bill 08/21/2023 24492 174.40

Bill 08/22/2023 24512 174.40

Total Goldenwest Mobility 1,853.00

III-A Trust

Bill 08/22/2023 Sept insurance 2,001.00

Total III-A Trust 2,001.00

KG&T Septic, Inc.

Bill 07/24/2023 35991 130.00

Bill 08/21/2023 36744 130.00

Total KG&T Septic, Inc. 260.00

Les Schwab

Bill 08/28/2023 10800776789 1,752.93

Total Les Schwab 1,752.93

Mike White Ford of Sandpoint

Bill 08/14/2023 32762 2,350.55

Bill 08/22/2023 32884 1,618.71

Bill 08/24/2023 33003 149.00

Total Mike White Ford of Sandpoint 4,118.26

Napa Auto Parts

Bill 08/22/2023 154343 24.91

Bill 08/22/2023 154322 106.43

Total Napa Auto Parts 131.34

Pressure Clean Services, Inc.

Bill 08/14/2023 17029 160.00

Bill 08/19/2023 17045 200.00

Bill 08/28/2023 17064 210.00

Total Pressure Clean Services, Inc. 570.00

RWC Group

Bill 08/16/2023 RA106008258:01 687.00

Total RWC Group 687.00

Verizon Wireless

Bill 08/13/2023 9941961993 309.63

Total Verizon Wireless 309.63

 Page 1 of 2



 4:17 PM
 08/29/23

 Selkirks-Pend Oreille Transit Authority

 Paid Bills Detail
 As of August 29, 2023

Type Date Num Open Balance

Ziply Fiber - BF

Bill 08/13/2023 38.64

Total Ziply Fiber - BF 38.64

TOTAL 18,184.99

 Page 2 of 2



 9:15 AM
 09/15/23

 Selkirks-Pend Oreille Transit Authority

Paid Bills Detail
 As of September 15, 2023

Type Date Num Open Balance

Bonner County Daily Bee

Bill 08/31/2023 79.30

Total Bonner County Daily Bee 79.30

Brown's Northside Machine & Gear, Inc.

Bill 09/12/2023 W 49068 99.75

Total Brown's Northside Machine & Gear, Inc. 99.75

Coleman Oil

Bill 08/31/2023 CP-0023800 2,004.93

Bill 09/03/2023 CP-0024236 739.54

Bill 09/10/2023 CP-0025532 1,957.27

Total Coleman Oil 4,701.74

First Bankcard

Bill 08/29/2023 1,213.10

Total First Bankcard 1,213.10

Goldenwest Mobility

Bill 08/24/2023 24524 174.40

Bill 08/25/2023 24517 174.40

Total Goldenwest Mobility 348.80

Les Schwab

Bill 08/23/2023 10800775914 2,005.76

Total Les Schwab 2,005.76

Mike White Ford of Sandpoint

Bill 08/30/2023 33170 50.48

Bill 09/13/2023 33443 713.03

Total Mike White Ford of Sandpoint 763.51

Mountain Ledgers

Bill 08/31/2023 6990 798.75

Total Mountain Ledgers 798.75

Napa Auto Parts

Bill 08/22/2023 154340 106.43

Total Napa Auto Parts 106.43

Pressure Clean Services, Inc.

Bill 09/08/2023 17082 195.00

Bill 09/11/2023 17093 200.00

Total Pressure Clean Services, Inc. 395.00

Spokane Testing Solutions

Bill 08/25/2023 15260 60.00

Total Spokane Testing Solutions 60.00

Ziply Fiber

Bill 08/22/2023 267.79

Total Ziply Fiber 267.79

TOTAL 10,839.93

 Page 1 of 1













SPOT Agenda Item Summaries 
 

Meeting Date:  September 21, 2023 

Agenda Item:  7a. 

From:   Colleen Culwell  

Topic:   Anderson Bros. CPAs Engagement Letter for approval and signature 

Background:   Review document, approve for signature please.   

 

Meeting Date:  September 21, 2023 

Agenda Item:  7b. 

From:   Donna Griffin 

Topic:   iiiA Benefits Documents Updated. Approve for signature please 
  
Background:   Updated JPA & Participation Agreement for approval and signature 

                                                                                                                                                                  

Meeting Date:  September 21, 2023 

Agenda Item:  7c. 

From:   Donna Griffin  

Topic:   ICRMP Updated JPA for approval and signature 

Background:   Updated ICRMP JPA or approval and signature 

Meeting Date:  September 21, 2023 

Agenda Item:  7d. 

From:   Donna Griffin  

Topic:   SPOT Authority User Code of Conduct and Paratransit Demand Application 

Background:    Review updated documents and approve for implementation.   

 

 



 

Meeting Date:  September 21, 2023 

Agenda Item:  7e. 

From:   Donna Griffin 

Topic:    Budget 2023 - 2024 

Background: The Notice of Public Hearing for the Selkirks -Pend Oreille Transit Authority 
proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 was posted in the Bonner County 
Daily Bee and in the Bonners Ferry Herald as required. The Public Hearing is 
scheduled for Thursday, September 21, 2023, at 11:00 a.m. 

 

Meeting Date:  September 21, 2023 

Agenda Item:  7f. 

From:   Zale Palmer 

Topic:    Bonner County Cost Allocation tool 

Background: This is one tool to help depict Ridership and Boarding activity as well as funding 
for the Fixed Routes (Blue and Green Routes) in Bonner County.  

 

Meeting Date:  September 21, 2023 

Agenda Item:  7f. 

From:   Donna Griffin 

Topic:   Financial considerations 

Background: Upcoming budget discussion and considerations. 



SPOT Ridership 

2023  Fixed Para Bonners Ferry Mountain Route Total 

23-Jan 4672 563 230 22489 27954 

23-Feb 4200 509 204 19502 24415 

23-March 4835 600 261 19601 25297 

23 April 4197 477 152 4612 9438 

23 May 4489 548 139 0 5176 

23 June 4199 565 190 0 4,954 

23 July 5986 489 129 628 7232 

23 August 6820 536 216 0 7092 

2023 TOTAL 39,398 4,287 1,521 66,832 112,038 
      
2022  Fixed Para Bonners Ferry Mountain Route Total 

22-Jan 3986 365 136 20650 25137 

22-Feb 3795 447 187 16777 21206 

22-Mar 4399 538 277 12794 18008 

22-Apr 3639 482 189 3470 7780 

22-May 3752 467 191  4410 

22-Jun 3827 588 185  4600 

22-Jul 4417 480 202 494 5593 

22-Aug 5132 596 217  5945 

22-Sep 3888 545 223 2419 7075 

22-Oct 4027 509 179  4715 

22-Nov 3577 498 195 1815 6085 

22-Dec 3776 478 237 21208 25699 

2022 TOTAL 48,215          5,993 2,418 79,627 136, 253 
      
2021 Fixed Para Bonners Ferry Mountain Route Total 

January 3334 270 111 9300 13015 

February 3278 311 96 7894 11579 

March 4345 414 111 6715 11585 

April 3513 331 97 1531 5472 

May 3949 299 69  4317 

June 3782 375 119  4276 

July 4420 388 169 524 5501 

August 3965 460 139  4564 

September 3392 459 123 3382 7356 

October 3471 425 190  4086 

November 3478 429 200 562 4669 

December 3873 401 256 14,413 18943 

2021 TOTAL 44,800 4,562 1,680 44,321 95,363 
      
2019 Fixed Para Bonners Ferry Mountain Route Total 
January 4579 439 271  5,289 

February 3847 373 215 5963 10,398 

March 4776 443 253 11583 17,055 

April 4846 452 257 1699 7,254 

May 4618 446 245  5,309 

June 4129 381 256  4,766 

July 4189 460 249  4,898 

August 7984 389 225 1594 10,192 
   2019 TOTAL          56,599     5,019                   2,924                 35,514                                  100,056 



Boundary County SPOT Ridership August 2023 

 

DATE MON TUE WED THURS FRI TOTAL 
8/1/2023 0 0 6 15 12 33 

8/6/2023 0 15 15 17 14 61 

8/13/2023 0 6 7 18 11 42 

8/20/2023 0 21 10 8 15 54 

8/27/2023 0 0 8 18 0 26 

      
 

August Total 0 42 46 76 52 216 
       
       
       

 

Bonners Ferry to Sandpoint  42+76=118 

Local     46+52= 98 
 
Total                  216 

 

DATE 

             
                                        

Sunset 

Rest County Moyie 

Demand 
Wed-Fri 
Seniors 

Tue/Thur 
Sandp't 
Seniors 

Wed    
Food 
Bank 
Boxes 

8/1/2023 2 0 0 6 14 11 11 
8/6/2023 2 0 0 6 25 24 10 

8/13/2023 2 0 0 6 12 19 10 
8/20/2023 2 0 4 6 19 25 10 

     8/27/2023 2 0 1 0 4 12 11 
        

        
August Total 10 0 5 24 74 91 52 

        
 




